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Napier Boys' High School

Statement of Responsibility

For the year ended 31 December 2018

The Board of Trustees accepts responsibility for the preparation of the annual consclidated financial statements
and the judgements used in these consolidated financial statements.

The management (including the principal and others as directed by the Board) accepts responsibility
for establishing and maintaining a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance as lo the integrity and refiability of the group's financial reporting,

Itis the opinion of the Board and management that the consolidated annual financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2018 fairly reflects the financial position and operations of the group.

The School's 2018 consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue by the Board.

Megan Sarah Campbell Landon Matthew Peter Charles Berlram
Fult Name of Board Chairperson Full Name of Principal
/&(uf/x Gt M\ h é e g

Signa'r(f’fj:f Board Chairperson ‘Rigerature of Principal

S ) May K019 3] mfj’ 20/9

Date; u/ Date:

Napier Boys High School Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statermnents

Pl



MNapier Boys' High Schooi

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2018

Notes School Group
2018 2018 2017 2018 20148 W7
Budgst Sadget
Actuat {Unauditad} Actual Actual {Unaudited) Agtiial
B ] g % $ L

Revanue
Govarnment Granls 2 9,502,951 8,619,203 9,726,875 8,582,981 4,615,203 9,726,875
Locally Reised Funds 3 1,680,436 997,360 1,130,007 1,860,436 997,380 1,138,007
Inlerest Eamed 143,130 24 686 #3418 114,530 24,686 75,060
Baln 0n Sale of Properly, Plant arid Equipment 4,380 - 3.800 4,380 . 3,890
Hostal 4 1,904,618 +.080,698 1,920,860 1,904,818 1.980,698 1,920,860
Intemational Students 5 404,108 315,000 52,0mM 404,106 315,000 IB2O7
Other Revenue - : - 72,169 163,753

43,659,864 12,836,957 13,206,121 13,743,830 12,926,867 13,381,516
Expénses
Locally Raised Funds 3 1,381,139 977,883 1,058,107 1,385,939 977,883 1,055,107
Hoste! ] 1,552,475 1,926,858 1,542,357 1,552,475 1,825,658 1,542 367
Intemational Students 5 171,101 138,153 143,780 1731 135,153 143,780
Leaming Resources 6 7,437,304 7,214,240 ¥,206,020 7.437,304 7,214,240 7.208,020
Administzation 7 1,032,623 1,118,068 208,617 1,834,011 1,119,066 431,917
Finance 75,600 66,576 36,485 79,985 85.576 36,485
Properly :1 1,736,685 1,570,845 1,718,619 1,736,685 1,570,845 1,718,619
Bepreclalion 9 795,610 944,599 615,763 795,810 844,984 §15,762

14,182,637 13,853,615 13,230,749 14,193,120 13,953,615 13 254,048
Not Surplus { {Deficit} for the year {522,675)  {1,016,648) {?4,628) {449,220)  {1,018,548) 127,458
Other Comprehensive Revenue and Exponses 184 167
Total Camprehensive Revenue and Expense for #he Year {822.875)  [1.016,548) {24,620 {295 423}  ({1,016,648) 127,458
Altributakie to:
Board of the Schoal (522.875)  ({1,0HE.B48) {24,628) (205123}  {t,016,648) 127,488

(522,675} (1,016,648 {24,628) £95,123} {1.016,648) 127,468

The above Consolidated Siaternent of Comprehensive Revenus and Expense should be read
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Napier Boys' High School
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Schoal Group
Budget Budget
Actual i nauditedy A0t Actual  pauditeqy Aot
2048 2018 2017 2018 2018 2017
13 $ 5 $ 5 3
Balanece at 4 January 8,487,478 9.100.782 8458487 9,774,475 10,344,438 9,593,390
Total comprehensive revenus and expense for the year {522,675Y  {1,016,648) {24,628) (295,123} {1,018,648) 127,467
Capitat Conlribulians from the Ministry of Education
Contribution - Furpiture and Equipment Grant 1,436 - 53,619 1,636 - 53,619
Equity at 31 December 7,966 439 8.084,134 B4B87478 9,480,988 2,327,790 9.774,476
Retained Earnings 7,966,438 8,084,134 B.487 478 5,480,985 9,327,790 3,774.476
Equity at 31 December 7,966,428 8,084,134 B,4B7.478 9,480,988 9,327,790 0774478

The above Consolidated Siatement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity should be read in conjunction
with the accompanying notes.
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Napier Boys' High School

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2018

Notes School Group
2018 2018 2M7 2018 2018 2017
Budget Budget
Actual {Unaudited) Actual Actual {Unauditec} Actual
$ $ $ $

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 0 2,980,617 3.017.500 2,584,608 077,220 3,017,500 2,652,496
Accounis Receivable 11 303,440 500,000 615,186 803,440 500,000 615,186
GST Receivable 72,001 79,572 181,416 72.089 70572 151,416
Prepayments 177,650 70,000 67,010 177,650 70,000 67,010
Inventories 12 249,889 280,000 285,249 249,859 240,000 285,249
Investments 13 - - 912,246 . - 912,246

4,263,687 3,057,081 4,626,005 4 380,288 3.857,081 4,683,603
Current Liabllities
Accounis Payable 15 894,378 800,000 755,652 854,378 800,000 769,908
Borrawings - Bue in one vear 16 123,996 100,000 75,506 123,986 400,000 75505
Revenue Received in Advance 17 652,125 470,000 394906 652,125 470,000 304,906
Provision for Gyclical Malntenance i8 35674 54,000 15,883 35,674 54,000 15,683
Finance Lease Liability - Current Podion 19 35041 - 28,679 35,941 - 28579
Funds held in Trust 20 462,301 380,060 A4G7 080 462,301 380,000 497 D80
Funds held for Capilat Works Projects 21 98,538 160,000 26,315 88,538 100,000 26315

2,302,953 1,904,060 1,793,720 2,302,953 1,904,000 1,807,076
Working Capital Surplusf{Deficit) 1,990,734 2,053,081 2,832,285 2,077,335 2.053.081 2,875,627
Non-current Assets
Investments 13 - - - 1,427,948 1,243,656 1.243.656
Property, Plant and Equipment 14 7.970.629 8,041,548 7.655,324 7,970,629 8,041,548 7,655,324

7,970,629 8,041,548 7.665,324 9,388,577 0,285,204 8,898,980
Non-current Liabilifies
Borrowings 16 1,503,417 1,544,495 1,644,435 1,503,417 1,544,485 1,644,485
Provision for Cyclical Maintenance 18 419,363 416,000 265,800 419,363 416,000 265,800
Finance Lease Lisbility 19 17,028 - 35,320 17.028 - 35,320
Funds held in Trust 20 55,118 50,000 54,516 55,116 §0.000 54,516

1,004,024 2,010,495 2,000,131 1,994,924 2,010,485 2,000,131
Net Assets 7.968,43% 8,084,134 8,487 478 9,480,985 9,327,790 G 774,476
Aftributable to:
Board of the School 7,866,438 8,084,134 8,487,478 9,480,988 9,327,720 09,774,476
Total eguity 7,566,439 8,084,134 8,487,478 9480985 9,327,790 9774476

The above Consolidated Statement of Financial Pasition should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.
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Napier Boys® High School
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Far the year ended 31 December 2018

Ngtes Schon] Group
208 Fily ] 2017 2018 2018 2017
Budgel Budgnt
Actual {Unaudited) Actual Actual {Unaudited) Actual
§ $ $ $ $ 5

Cash flows from Operating Activities

Govamment Grands 2370477 2,468,312 2,451,826 2,370,177 2,469,312 2,451,536
Locally Raised Funds 1,726,843 967,280 1,110,240 1,726,843 987,280 1,126,106
Hostel 1,911,019 1,980,658 1,820,858 1,911,019 1,980,698 1,920,859
Intemational Students 483,243 315000 352,071 483,346 315,000 352,071
Gaoods and Services Tax (net} 78,326 (80,000) (82,4409 79,329 (20,000} {82.d40)
Payments 10 Employees (1,988,580} (2,100958) {1.492,548) (1,089,560} (2100958}  (1,4902.549)
Payments to Suppliers (3.863,06%)  [3.658675) (3.877,806) (3.867,615) (3,5SB676)  (3,889,203)
Interssi Paid {75,608) {65.576) {27,770} (79,995) (65.576) @17
inleres Received 103,130 24,685 63,418 148,005 24,686 92,645
Funds in Trust {115,248) 1,000,000 376,202 {115,248) 1,000,000 276,202
MNat cash fromis.{to) the Dperating Avié “§30,3661 881,88 958 68,301 “81:885- TILE8T
Cash flows from [nvesting Activities

Proceeds from Sals of PPE (and intanglbles) 3,764 - - 3,764 - -
Purchase of PPE {and Intangibles) (£.120,008) (1,085,220}  (2,718,671)  (1,120,089)  {1,085220) (2,11B,671)
Purchase of Investmenls - - {912 246) (77.798) - {1,023, 066)
Proceeds from Sale of Investments 012,246 2,246 - 983,024 12,246 70,056
Ned cash from / (to) the investing Aclivilles {204,988) (ﬁ,gﬁl (3.030,917) {(212,007) {172,974} (3071.681)
Cash flows from Financing Activities

Furniture and Equipraent Grant 1638 - 53,619 1,638 - 53,619
Finance Lease {nat} {10.831) - 58,301 (10,931} - 58,301
Minlstry of Education Capital Warks Projects 72224 - 133,935 72,224 33,935
Winistry of Education Capital Warks Projects Payments - - (107,431} . . {107,431}
Repayment of Loans (82,597) (74,508) (125,000 (92,587} (75,505) {125,000)
Loan Received - - 1,720,000 - . 1,720,000
Net cash from Financing Activities (29,658} (75,508) 1,733,424 {29,658} {75,505) 1,733,424
Nepinereage/{decroas 5710 {AB.002 RITET €A A5T - (E00 700
Cazh and cagh aquivalents al the baginaing of Lhe yoar 14 2,594 808 2,384 122 2,158,630 2,652,494 2,384,122 3,253,194
Cagh and casii equivaiants at16s 6ad BT SR DA 008 s ST 220, 01000 0 2,060 404,

The Consoidated Statement of Cash Flows records only those cash flows directly within the control of the School, This means
centrally funded teachers' salaries and the use of land and bulidings grant and expense have been omitled.

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Napier Boys' High School

Notes to the Group Financial Statements

1. Statement of Accounting Policies
For the year ended 31 December 2018

a) Reporting Entiiy

Napier Boys' High School is a Crown entity as specified in the Crown Entities Act 2004 and a schaol as described in the
Education Act 1989. The Board of Trustees (the Board) is of the view that the School is a public benefit entity for financial
raporting purposes.

The Napier Boys High School Graup (the *Group’) consists of Napier Boys High School and its subsidary Napier Boys High
Schoal Charfiable Trust No.2. The Subsidiary Is a School Trust {'Trust') which supports the school by investing funds and
making donations for the School.

b) Basis of Preparation

Reporting Period

The financial reports have been prepared for the period 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 and in accordance
with the requirements of the Public Finance Act 1980,

Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, and the accounting policies have been

consistently applied throughout the period.

Basis of Consolidation

The group financial statements are prepared by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, revenue, expenses, and
cash flows of entities in the group an a line-by-fine basis. All intra-group balances, transactions, revenue, and expanses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Details of investment in subsidiaries are set out in Note 30,

Financial Reporting Standards Applied

The Education Act 1989 requires the School, as a Crown entity, to prepare financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practice. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand, applying Public Sector Public Benefit Entity (PBE) Standards Reduced Disclosure Regime
as appropriate to public benefit entities that qualify for Tier 2 reporting. The Group is considered a Public Benefit Entity as it
meets the criteria specified as "having a primary objective to provide goods andfor services for community or social benefit and
where any equity has been provided with a view to supporting that primary objective rather than for financial return to equity
holders”,

PBE Accounting Standards Reduced Disclosure Regime
The Group qualifies for Tier 2 as the group is not publicly accountable and is not considered large as it falls below the
expenditure threshold of $30 million per year. All refevant reduced disclosure concessions have been taker.

Measuremernt Base
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis unless otherwise noted in a specific
accounting policy.

Presentation Currency
These consolidated financial statements are prasented in New Zealand dollars, rounded to the nearest dollar,

Specific Accouniing Policies
The accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statemends are set out below.

Napier Boys High School Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements M%




Critical Accounding Estimates And Assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amourts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisicns to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Useful Kves of properly, plant and equipment

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting date. The Group
believes that the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment as disclosed in the Significant Accounting Policies
are appropriate to the nature of the property, plant and equipment at reporting date. Property, plant and equipment is disclosed at
note 14,

Critical Judgements in applying accounting policies
Management has exercised the following eritical judgements in applying accounting policies:

Classification of leases

The Group reviews the details of lease agreements at the end of each reporting date. The Group believes the classification of
each lease as sither operation or finance is appropriate and reflacts the nature of the agreement in place. Finance leases are
disclosed at note 19,

Consolidation of entifies
The Group consoclidates entities based on whether the School has established contral of the subsidiary. The subsidiaries which
ara controlled are disclosed at Note 30.

¢) Revenue Recognition

Government Grants
The Group receives funding from the Ministry of Education. The following are the main types of funding that the School receives;

Operational grants are recorded as revenue when the Group has the rights to the funding, which is in the year that the funding is
received.

Teachers salaries grants are recorded as revenue when the Group has the rights o the funding in the salary period they relate to.
The grants are not received in cash by the Group and are paid directly to teachers by the Ministry of Education.

Use of land and buildings grants are recorded as revenue in the period the Group uses the land and buildings. These are not
received in cash by the Group as they equate to the deemed expense for using the land and buildings which are owned by the
Crown.

Other Grants

Other grants are recorded as revenus when the Group has the rights to the funding, unless there are uniulfiled conditions
attached to the grant, in which case the amount relating to the unfuifilled conditions is recognised as a liability and released to
revenue as the conditions are fulfilled,

Donations, Gifts and Beguesis
Donations, gifts and bequests are recorded as revenue when their receipt is formally acknowledged by the Group.

Interest Revernue
Interest Revenue sarned on cash and cash equivalents and investments is recorded as revenue in the period it is earned.

d) Use of Land and Buildings Expense

The property from which the Group operates is owned by the Crown and managed by the Ministry of Education on behalf of the
Crown. The Group's use of the land and buildings as occupant is based on a properiy occupancy document as gazetted by the
Ministry. The expense is based on an assumed market rental yield on the value of land and buildings as used for rating purposes.
This is a non-cash expense that is offset by a nan-cash grant from the Ministry,

Napier Boys High School Annual Report and Consclidated Financial Statements

P



e} Operating Lease Payments
Paymenis made under operating leases are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense
on a siraight line basis over the term of the lease.

f) Finance Lease Payments
Finance lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term on an effective interest basis.

g) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, bank halances, deposits held at call with banks, and other short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of 80 days or less, and bank overdrafts. The carrying amount of cash and cash
equivalents represent fair value.

h} Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable repragents items that the Group has issued invaices for or accrued for, but has not received payment for at
year end. Receivables are initially recorded at fair value and subseguently recorded at the amount the Group realistically expects
to receive. A receivable is considered uncollectable where there is objective evidence the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due. The amount that is uncollectable {the provision for uncollectibility) is the difierence between the amount due and
the present value of the amounts expected io be collected.

i} Inventories

Inventories are consumable items held for sale and comprise of stationery and school uniforms, They are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a first in, first cut basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of aclivities less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Any write down frem cost to net realisable
value is recorded as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense in the peried of the
write down.

1) Investments

Bank term deposits for periods exceeding 90 days are classified as investimenis and ars initially measured ai the amount
invested. Interest is subsequently accrued and added to the investment balance. After initial recognition bank term depocsiis are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment.

Investments that are shares are categorised as "available for sale" for accounting purposes in accordance with financial reporting
standards. Share investments are recognised initialty by the Group at fair value plus transaction costs, At balance daie the Group
has assessed whether there is any evidence that an investment is impaired. Any impairment, gains or losses are recognised in
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense,

After initial recognition any investments categorised as available for sale are measured af their fair value without any deduction
for transaction costs the Group may incur on sale or other disposal.

The Group has met the reguirements of Schedule 6 para 28 of the Education Act 1988 in relation to the acquisition of investiment
securities,

k) Property, Plant and Equipment
Land and buildings owned by the Crown are excluded from these consolidated financial statements. The Board's use of the land

and buikdings as ‘cccupant’ is based on a property occupancy document,
improvements to buildings owned by the Crown are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation and irmpairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost or, In the case of donated assets, fair value at the date of receipt, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost or fair value as the case may be, includes those costs that relate directly
to bringing the asset to the location where It will be used and making sure it is in the appropriate condition for its intended use.

Property, plant and equipment acquired with individual values under 51,000 are not capitalised, they are recognised as an
expense in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

Gains and losses on disposals (i.e. sold or given away) are determined by comparing the proceeds received with tha carrying
amounts {i.e. the hook vaiue). The gain or loss arising from the disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

Napier Boys High School Annual Report and Consolidated Financlal Statements




Leased Asseis

Leases where the Group assumes substantiaily all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. The
assets acquired by way of finance lease are measured at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of
the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Leased assets and
corresponding liability are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and leased assets are depraciated over
the perfod the Group is expected to benefit from their use or over the term of the lease.

Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment except for library resources are depreciated over their estimated useful lives on a straight line

basis. Library resources are depreciated on a diminishing value basie. Depreciation of alf assets is reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are;

Building improvements to Crown QOwned Assets 1075 years

Furniture and equipment 10-18 years

Infermation and communication technology 4--5 years

Maotor vehicles 5 years

Taxtbooks 3 years

Leased assets held under a Finance Lease 4 years

Library resources 12.6% Diminishing value

1) Intangible Assets

Software cosis

Computer software acquired by the Group are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. Costs associated with subseguent maintenance or licensing of software are recognised as an expense in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense when incurred.

Computer software licences with individual values under $1,000 are not capitalised, they are recognised as an expense in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense when incurred.

Computer software that the Group receives from the Ministry of Education is normally acquired through a non-exchangs
fransaction and ig not of a material amount. It's fair value can be assessed at time of acquisition if no ather metheds lead to a fair
value determination. Computer software purchased directly from suppliers at market rates are considered exchange transactions
and the fair value is the amount paid for the software.

The carrying value of software is amortised on a straight line basis over its useful life. The useful life of software is estimated as
three years. The amortisation charge for each period and any impairment loss is recorded in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

m) iImpairment of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets
The Group does not hold any cash generating assets. Assets are considered cash generating where their primary objective is to
generate a commercial return.

Nor cash generating assoets

Property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets held at cost that have a finite useful life are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amaunt may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service amount, The recoverable
service amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Value in use is determined using an approach based on either a depreciated replacement cost approach, restoration cost
approach, or a service units approach. The most appropriate approach used e measure value in use depends on the nature of
the impairment and availability of information.

if an asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service amount, the asset is regarded as impaired and the carrying amount
is written down to the recoverable amount. The total impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

The reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit,

Napier Bays High School Annual Report and Consalidated Financial Statements
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n) Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior te the end of the financial year which
are unpaid. Accounts Payable are recorded at the amount of cash required te seltle those liabilities. The amounts are unsecured
and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

o} Employee Entitlements

Short-term employee entffierments

Employee benefits that are due to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee
renders the relaled service are measured based on acerued entitlements at current rates of pay.

These include safaries and wages accrued up to balance date, annual leave earned to but not yet taken at balance date.

Long-term employee entitlements

Emplovee benefits that are due to be settled beyond 12 manths after the end of the period in which the emplovee renders the
related service, such as long servica leave and retirernent gratuities, have been calculated on an actuarial basis. The calculations
are based on:

» Bkely future entitlements accruing to staff, based on years of service, years to entillernent, the likelihood that staff will reach the
point of entitlernent, and contractual entitlement information; and

* the present value of the estimated future cash flows.

p} Revenue Received in Advance
Revenue received in advance relates to fees received from international students and hostel students where there are unfulfifled
cbfigations for the Group to provide services in the future. The fees are recorded as revenue as the obligations are fuffilled and

the fees eamed.

The Group holds sufficient funds to enable the refund of unearmed fees in refation to international students, should the Group be
unable ta provide the services to which they relate.

g} Funds Held in Trust

Funds are held in trust where they have been received by the Group for a specified purpose, or are being held on behalf of a third
party and these transactions are not recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Revenue and Expsnse. The Group holds
sufficient funds to enable the funds to be used for their intended purpose at any time.

r} Shared Funds

Shared Funds are held on behsif of participating schools as agreed with the Ministry of Education, These funds are outside of
schoal control. These amounts are not recorded In the Statement of Revenue and Expense. The Group holds sufficient funds to
enable the funds to be used for their intended purpose.

s) Provision for Cyclical Mainienance

The property from which the Group operates is ownad by the Crown, and is vested in the Ministry. The Ministry has garetted a
property occupancy document that sets out the Board’s property maintenance responsibilities. The Board is responsible for
maintaining the land, buildings and other facilities on the Group sites In a state of good order and repair.

Cyclical maintenance, which involves painting the interior and exiericr of the Group, makes up the most significant part of the
Board’s responsibilities outside day-to-day maintenance. The provision for cyclical maintenance represents the obligation the
Board has fo the Ministry and is based on the Board's ten year property plan {(10YPP).

t) Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Group's financial asseis comprise cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivahle, and investments. All of these financial
assets, except for investments that are shares, are categorised as “loans and receivables” for aceounting purposes in
accordance with financial reporting standards.

Investments that are shares are categorised as "available for sale” for accounting purposes in accordance with financial reporting
standards.

The Group's financial liahilities comprise accounts payable, borrowings, finance lease liability, and painting contract ability. All of
these financial liabilities are categorised as "financial liabilities measured at amortised cost” for accounting purposes in
accordance with financial reporting standards.

i
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u} Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised at the amount barrowed. Borrowings are classiiied as current liabilities unless the Group has an
uncenditional right to defer setilement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance date.

v} Goods and Services Tax {GST)
The consolidated financial statements have been prapared on a GST exclusive bagis, with the exception of accounts receivable

and accounts payahle which are stated as GST inclusive.

The net amount of GST paid to, or received from, the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities, is
classified as a net operating cash flow in the consofidated statements of cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST.

w)} Budget Figures
The budget figures are extracted frem the Group budget that was approved by the Board at the start of the year.

X} Services received in-Kind
From time to time the Group receives services in-kind, including the time of volunteers. The Group has elected not to recognise

services received in kind in the Consclidated Statement of Compréhensive Revenue and Expense.

y) Goodwili
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business {see
"Basis of Consolidation" above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Napier Boys High School Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements




2 Fovervment Grapiz

Eehoet Fioup
age s 2018 2013 019 2018 27
Budgel Budaget
Ackas) jLinading ) At Eotual (Unagdiiod} Arfual
H 5 § H H &
Operational granis 1,086,863 1,801,647 1.622,998 4,951,089 1,501,647 1972188
Taschars' salades grenls 683631 3323400 £332,11% 6,253,834 S323.465 332915
e of Land and Buildings grants [:Elesix ] 810835 843,127 819,936 816,835 G437
Cihat Mok Grantz 474,537 E42.132 AGEAB4 ATAIT G4, 132 3,404
Olhgr govarmaent granis A2 4d5 41,000 35,955 32409 41,000 15955
£ 502 G0 B aiY0] 072G A7 EESFRT 4.650.203 T.renlTh
= i ES-BE L
T Leeally Pasad Funds
Loxg! funds rained wilIn the Graup's community are made up of:
Sehos Group
2048 2048 20t 2018 2018 2017
Budpnt Budgst
Actuial fUnaudiicd) Asloal Artnal fUnaudded] Azhyal
3 3 ¥ - % L
Revenue
Donaligns 100,221 187.000 133,135 10038 187,000 AR5
Bogquasts 142,077 o G450 2077 f MASD
Other revenun 43,525 f 40400 43,639 L] 4,60p
Dversens Travel Revenve Japan 2018 Tip 70,142 1] ] TAIE 1] 1]
Quversaas Fravel Revenu Sealh Afiea 2018 Rugby Tip 180,365 ¢ o 10305 2 L]
Tradinp 608,03 S10.000 &7n001 808,500 510,000 570.281
Aptivities 411,314 233AE 255,606 411,314 2334106 256,806
Curicuiurs Rocovenos 94,610 18,564 44,4925 94,618 G595 54,028
1.EGD.4 3D AT, 300 L120.007 1 EEGALS 4FY. 1135007
Exponges
Actiuitles S0 waz 521,003 G0, D98 590,722 -2 o1
Trading 51405 456,000 500,008 S31,408 458,000 509,080
Overseas Trova! Expensas Japan 2018 Trp 70,240 o o 70,340 i} 1
Owvirsoas Teave) Exgenses South Alrca 2018 Rughy Trip 1BR.GT bl ] 10861 1] 1]
Other Locally Ravsed Funds Expandilure g ] L] 4800 1 1]
136,133 EREETE 1055107 10 G UTFEE THES S
Stepius for ey yeear Locasy relsed hands 2R DT 15427 75000 2 i [ER 15 5%

$142,077 begues! from L 14 Lazell 2012 Revoketie Trust which ks esmmarked for new lechn olagy purthases in futer years, The bequesl i caselfod as Cash Exchanpe although the purchase of the technofogy Aems
will bo slassiled Bs Noa-Coeh Gangraling Assols dep ending on the plapose and use.

The purpase of the Soulh Afifca Rudby Tour 2048 and Japan Tourwas 1o gromate and suppori pursonal excelence for boys Wrough a Sroad curdeulm which sliows

for 2 full eange of acadomic, sparting, euliural, feadarahip and servies cppanunites, 10 students and 2 adults anendasina Japan lour. 26 stugdents and 4 adidts

attended the South Afica Rupby Tour, The Jagon tour was for Jopanese Ianguage sludents & develop thalriangusge shils, The Soulh Africa Teur vas to devekp

Tughy. Both tips were soif funding through student conlributions snd Tunraising activilies.
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4, Hostal Revenus anil Expenses

2018
Actual
Humber
Hosted Finengfal Perdurmance
Huoster Full Boarders

Hostel Weekly Boarders

$choaol
2018
Budyget

{tiazudited)
Humber

217

Aclual
Humber

i b F

Actual

Humber

Grovp
2018
Budgnt
nauditad)
Humbor

1Y

Acted)
Humbar

School Group
2038 2018 7 2018 218 2057
Budgel Buaget
Aciual {Unauditod) Actual Actual {Unaudited) Aetual
] ] 5 5 S 5
Revanto
Hasiel Fees 1.638.543 1,676,430 1,880 438 1,639,543 1876430 1,680,436
Qlher Ravenue 265,275 304,268 240422 265,276 4. 268 240,422
1,914,818 1,980,688 1,920 B0 1,904,618 1,580,698 1,820,860
Exponses
Kitchen 360,851 439,432 374,138 30,861 439,432 379,138
Laurdry 27.823 35000 3124 27,823 A5,000 31,24
Welfara 20,000 20,000 20000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Supervision 318,081 4484 876 299 156 318,081 494,676 299,156
Ertrg curiculariactivilies 11,818 B.000 2073 11.681¢ 8,000 8,075
Administralion 152011 152.200 150,547 152,041 154,200 150,647
Propeny 291,378 354,000 252,796 299,378 354,000 252, T96
Employes Benelit « Salanies 70,503 418,580 400,334 370,503 A18.550 400,334
1,552,475 1.825,858 1542357 1,552,475 1,825,858 1,542,357
Surpfus {Defich) for the year Hoste! A52, 343 5-1_'&5”0 A7R.503 35&243 54,840 376,503
5 intermlanal Sludent Revenie and Expenses - ¢
sehool Group
2018 2018 017 2018 2648 20457
Budget Budget
Actual Unaudited) Actusl Agtuaal {Unauditecs) Actual
Numbar Number Number
Intetnationsl Siwdent Rol RIF R ET A0 ad s
Schook Group
2018 2016 M7 2013 2018 2017
Brrigeq Budget
Actual (Unaudited) Actual Actual fnaudited) Aclual
5 5 5 5 $ £
Revenue
Infernational sludent fees 404,108 315,000 A2 00 ELERT] 35,000 382,071
Experizes
Adversing 60,205 103,680 65,244 60,295 103,680 BE.244
Other Expenses 110,808 H 472 78,558 110,805 31,472 78,536
171,101 135153 143,780 175 135,153 145,786
Surplas for the year infermafional Shidenis 233065 170.847 208281 233 005 179847 208,241
. Leaming Resoorces
Schaonl Group
2018 2018 2047 2018 2018 207
Budget Budgat
Actyal IUnauditad) Aciuval Actual {Unauditzd) Acius)
& 3 3 % E) 3
Curigylar kiRl 302951 361,080 306,059 382 951 361,080
Equipmeani rapairs 25,825 22,000 35,786 25925 22,000 35,786
Information $ng communlcalian 1achnelogy 39,682 47,000 31808 30,6882 47,000 37,808
Library resooreas 1551 18000 1,718 1,851 18000 1,718
Employes benefils - salaries 6,901,340 €.641,208¢ 6,680,968 6,901 340 5,641,289 6,680,968
SiaH developmenl 69,347 103,000 88,5582 89,347 103,000 48682
7437304 7.214,240 7,208,020 7.437.304 7.214.240 7 215030
E— I C— TEFTEFTTETTE
T. Adminlstration - -7 v
School Group
018 e 2017 E{ 1] 2018 2017
Budgat Budget
Aetual {Unaudited) Actual Actual {Unaudited) Actual
3 5 3 ¥ 5 5
Autit Fea 8480 7,000 3,305 5490 14900 8,305
Board of Trustess Fass 5,350 4,100 &.250 £,350 8,100 6,250
Board of Trustees Expenses 16471 23,400 13.595 18471 23,400 13,545
Communigation 72,825 I7.993 59,536 728258 77,099 59,536
Cansumables 150,877 211,370 133,048 160977 211,370 133,048
Operating Lease 19,783 53.000 3,151 19,783 53.000 3181
Legat Fees 44 3,000 113 44 000 1.131
Crihes 63,713 67,697 57,086 65,101 &7.697 80,386
Employee Bonelis - Salanies 553,580 530,500 4B4,008 553,580 530,500 454,008
Insrance aTded 37,000 34,643 37468 37000 34,643
Service Providers, Contractors and C ¥ 104,923 100,000 97 BES 104,823 104,000 97,865
1,032,623 1,119,086 208,617 1,034,011 1,119,066 931.918
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B Property

Carataking and Cieaning Consumallas
Cydlical idaintenance Expense
Grounds

Heay, Lipht and water

Rates

Repairs and Maintenaace

Uge of Land end Bulldings

Secusity

Emplayes Banadits - Salares

The use of Jand and buildings igure reprezenlts 8% of lhe Group's total praperty value. This is used as a ‘proxy’ for Ihe marke! renlal of the property. Properly vdlues are established a5 part of the nakon-wide

1 Ise that e ducted avery 30 Juna far the Ministry of Eduration™s year-end reporing purpases.

$. Depreciation -

EBuildings

Fumityre ang Equipment

Informalion and Communication Technology
Malor Vhictas

Tentoaks

Leased Assels

Lirary Resources

40, Cash and Cash Equitealends - :

Cash on Hand

Bank Current Account
Bank Call Account
Short-term Bank Deposits

Cash equivaients ang bonk overgrall for Consolloated Cash Flowe Statement

The canying vakue of sharl-term deposils with maturily dates of 80 days or less approximaies their fair value.

Scheal Group
2018 2018 am7 Fa b 2018 207
Budget Budget
Actupl (i naudite ) Attual Actual [Unaudited) Agtual
3 § ] 5 5 5
141,748 155,000 158,664 141,740 159,000 158,664
08,435 15,000 141,796 308,426 115,000 144,785
7r.708 78,000 e, 17,708 TEO0D 78941
45,813 02300 97710 95,013 148,300 97,740
11,103 4,000 5618 1,193 9.000 8.618
97482 §0,000 49,962 574082 60,000 49 962
210,038 10,035 3127 810,335 810,915 943,127
35,613 30,000 24,001 35,613 30,000 24,001
197,854 201,610 215,800 167,854 04,510 246 B
1.?35@85 1;5?09345 1,718,619 1.738.385 1,570,845 1,718,612
Schaol Group
2018 18 017 2048 2018 207
Buriget Budgal
Aztum [Unaudited} Actuak Astural {Unaudited] Aoiuat
5 $ 5 % 5 3
263,980 47,800 240 762 202,930 347,53 249,752
207,100 245,505 146,543 267,100 245083 146,543
230,314 273556 147,714 230,314 273,550 147,714
27,449 32,603 23,156 27449 32,503 23,756
4118 10,830 7980 g.118 104830 7.980
20,381 23,645 32679 20,481 23546 32,675
8468 10,082 7333 £.488 10,082 7,33%
TEEEID 543594 818,783 R PAASR 615,763
Schoal Group
2019 2098 M7 2048 2048 T
Budget Budgel
Acluaal {Unaudited) Actus] Actual {Unauditedj Astual
) ] 3 5 3 %

150 150 158 150 150 159
o05,626 204,055 B28.737 602,229 204,055 BEY 336
164,849 200,000 210,002 164,849 200,000 210,002

2,200,000 2,613,304 1,845,000 2,200,000 2,612,200 1,554,992
2,950,617 017,508 2,584,690 3.0?7150 3017 509 2 652 496

Of the $3.077,220 Cash and Cash Equivalents, $8B.538 is hekd by the Group on bekall of the hinislry of Education, These funds ale required ta be speat in 2019 an Crown ownad Group buildiens under the Group's

Five Year Progery Flan,

14, Accounts Regalvaile * -

Receivatles
Teachear Salaries Grant Raceivalle

Receivabies from Exchange Transaclions
Receivables frem Non-Exch T: e

g

12, Inventarlas

Stallonery
Sehool Liniforms
Cantaen

School Propery
Hostel Provisions

Magier Boys High School Annual Report and Cangolidaied Finansisl Stalements

Schoot Group
2018 2018 2mM7 2018 28 207
Budget Budgat
Aclupt [Unzudited} Actusl Aclual (Unaudiied] Acluai
b 5 5 5 5 5
362,408 0,000 184,805 262,408 50,000 194,606
447,034 480,000 420,580 441,034 4al, 000 A20.580
S03.440 506,000 619,186 BQ3.440 500.600 615,188
338,408 50,000 144 BOG 3Rk 908 50,000 194,608
4B5,032 450,000 420,580 485032 450,800 420,580
200 440 500,000 615 188 an3 440 500,000 615 186
School Group
2048 2018 2017 2018 2013 04T
Budgot Butgel
Asvral {tnaudhad) Actual Actuar IUaauditad) Actual
5 5 ] 5 5 $
15,596 8,597 8,387 15,966 8537 8,387
223,606 270,568 266,135 223308 270,568 268,136
2,641 3338 .21 2,641 3338 32
1838 1,700 1672 1,638 1,700 1478
5,508 5,859 5,763 5,308 5899 3,763
FIERED) 250.000 FIERTL) FLENEGE] 260,600 285249
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13, Investments IO R

The Group and Schodl's investimenl’s are classihed as follows:

Cument Assels
Shan Term Bank Qanaesits
Curranl Asgets

Invastments
Fired Nterest Sacuriies
Bhares

Napler High Schools Land Endowmend Trust 113 share

Man-current assels

4, Progerty, Plaiiand Extinment
PARENT & GROUP

2018

Land

Buildings

Furniture and Equipmen

Iefgrmration and Comemunicalion FTectndogy
Motar Wehiclas

Textbuoks

Leased Assels

Library Resourcas

Balance al 3 December 2018

PARENT & GROUE

2018

Land

Euildings

Furniture and Equipmant

Information &nd Cammunicaion Teshnalogy
Motor Vehfches

Toxlbooks

Leased Assets

Litwary Rasaures

Balonce at 21 December 2048

FARENT 5 GROUP

2017

Land

Buildings

Furniture gng Equipment

Information and Communicalion Technology
Mator Vehicies

Teuthooks

Leased Assels

Library Resources

Bzlance at 3 Decomber 2017

PARENT & GROUP

2017

f.and

Buiklings

Furniure ang Equlpmant

Information and Communicatian Technology
fator Yehicles

Taxlrooks

Leazed Acsels

Library Resources

Ralance a1 31 Decamber 2017

School Group
2018 2018 FIikys 2018 2048 7
Budget Budgat
Actual {Unauditad) Actual Actual {Unaudied) Agtual
§ 5 § s 5 5
- - 912,295 - - 432,246
) 1 512,248 1] (] FIFFLI
- - - 215 602 232247 zaaase
- - - 682 256 £55,591 B55.981
. - - 520,000 A65.833 465.833
4 [ 0 1,421,948 1,343,656 1,242,656
Opening Balance
{HBY] Additions Dispasaly Galn dn sale Depredialion Total (NBY)
) H 5 ] -] H
77,600 - B 7,690
5,860,021 272,T6S 292,880 5,840,708
938,255 40,081 207,090 134,250
574,687 337,089 230,214 621,465
82,464 63 518 7281 4,350 27449 115,53t
29,877 22318 9,118 53,374
40,818 - 20181 20,658
40,8049 14,626 o485 46,947
7 665322 1113808 T 4380 735801 7,570,670
c fm ‘or gccumt.nalteu Het Boak Yalup
W apr d
§ 5 S
TF.69A . 77.6850
9,514 9238 3478233 B,8406,705
3,600,801 2548842 1,434,258
3120297 2,438,836 64,461
470,263 354,733 115,531
408,561 355,183 53,378
75,596 E4,038 20,650
153,561 116,614 46,947
17,311.806 8,341,178 T 970,629
Dpening Balante
{NBY) Adillpng Disposals Fnpi 1| [+ 3 Total (NBV)
kS § H 5 H
Tr,B80 - - - TF.EDD
4,433,041 1,877,632 - {249,752} 5,860,524
720,887 263,901 - (146.543) 938,255
576,462 145,308 {447,714 574,847
80,545 26,083 A57 {23,756] 92,4965
43,135 4,518 [7,5B0) 0,677
4,145 289,333 (32, 875} 40,819
3,084 13,954 [7,335) 40,508
s‘u4ui153 2,23 1390 43? - 815, 783} 7,655,323
Caostor Accumuleted
Yaluallon Ocoreciation Ket Book Value
H 5 |3
77,600 - Fr.690
8,042,174 (3.191,253} 5,560,921
3,277,810 (2,399,552} 834,250
2,783,208 (2,208,522} ST4.58¢
431,376 {248,912) 82,464
385,744 {346,084) 33,6%7
75,508 (24,777} 40,819
140,935 {108,126} 40,809
16,202,630 8,587 208} ¥.655,224

Napier Boys High School Anuat Report and Consolidated Financlal Statemants




18, Aocounia Payeble -

Ciparating credliors

Capited accruals for PPE items
Employee Entiflements - salsies
Employee Enliflernenta - feave accrual

Fayables lor Exchange Transattions

The carrying value of payables approximates their fair value,

16 Bomrowings . T e Y

Duein One Year
Bue Geyong One Year

The Group Ras borawings at 31 December 2018 of $1.62 milliva, {31 December 2017 $1.72 million). This loan s from the ASE Bank for the pumose of funding the

constucion of @ hostel dorm. The loan s unsecured, interest ks 3.9% per annum and the faan |3 payabls with intsrest in monthly Mslalments (lypically $10,268 per

month). A volunlary fump sum repayment of $100,000 was made on § Febriary 2018,

17. Ravanue Recolved in Advance ©°

Interational Student Fres
Hostel Fees
Olhar

18. ProvisTon tor Gyelicei Malntéganco

Pravieion atthe Stant of tha Year
Increass 16 the Pravision During the Year

Provision al the End of the Yaar

LCyelical Maintenance - Curmant
Cyclicat Malntenance - Term

19, Finance Leang Lishility -

The Group has eafared inio a number of finance laase sgreements for camputers and olber ICT equipmant. Minlmurn lease payments payable:

No Latar than One Year

Later Ihan One Year and no Later than Five Years

Napigr Boys High School Answal Repod and Consolldeted Financlal Statements

Schog! Group
g 2018 2047 My 2018 2017
Budget Eutign]
Ardual fUnaudiied) Actual Actual {Unaudited; Aztal
3 5 3 & $ H
250,207 220000 150,570 250,207 320000 144,431
123,281 - 134,502 123,861 - 134,592
447,034 420,000 420,577 447,034 420,000 420,577
19,256 &0,000 70,306 79,256 £0.000 10,408
884,378 800,600 J55552 894,378 800.000 7E0.008
324,378 800,000 755,652 894,370 500.000 769,008
894,378 H00,000 755 652 854,378 890400 T69.008
Sehool Group
2018 2018 2047 2018 2018 2017
Budgot Budge!
Actual [Unaudited) Aciual Actual {Unaudited) Aetual
§ % 3 $ 5 5
121,986 100,000 75,505 123,998 104,000 75,508
1,503,417 1,544,495 1,844,495 1503417 1.544.4%5 1,544,495
1627413 3,642.4095 1720000 1627418 1,645,495 1.720,000
Schigal Group
2018 2ma 2017 2018 2008 017
Budget Budgat
Arcienl inavdited] Aciual Ackual {Unaudiiad) Actual
5 $ & 3 5 5
375,822 375,000 296,583 375,822 ar5,00¢ 245,083
39,161 4u000 32,981 38,161 40,000 32,9651
237,142 55,000 85,361 237,142 55,000 65.381
852,125 470,000 394,905 852.125 470,000 384,008
School Group
2mE 2018 2017 IR 2018 27
Budget Budgat
Aciun! {Unawdind) Actual Actual fUnaudited} Aclual
5 3 5 5 £ ¥
281,483 270,000 270,000 281,483 270,000 270,000
172,554 200,000 11,483 1730 200,000 11,483
455,037 470,000 2B1.483 455 037 470,000 231.483
5574 54,000 15,883 38,674 54,000 15,684
419,383 416,000 285,000 419,263 416,000 263,500
455,037 470,000 281,403 455,037 470,000 231,423
Schoal Group
2018 2010 2017 e 018 2007
Budget Budget
Aclua$ [Unaudited) Actuat Actual (Unaudited) Actual
5 5 H % § $
R v B A - BASTD
T 8530 SATgar T - 35320
£3.849 53,968 - §3.825
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20, Fynds betddn Trissf ™

School Groug
2018 2018 2047 2018 2018 017
Bodgsl Budget
Actuat {Unaudited} Actual Actual {Ungudited) Aciual
$ H § 5 5 %
Funds Held in Trugt on Behalf of Third Pardes - Cument 462,301 380,000 497,080 452,201 380,000 497,080
Funds Hedd in Trust on Behall of Third Parties - Mon-currant 55,116 50,000 54 516 65,118 50,000 5d,516
217417 430.000 557,595 517.417 432,000 551,596
‘These funds are held where the school is agent for rep i any therafare these ant not inchuded inthe Consolidated } of Compy

Revenue ang Expense,

21. Fundg Held {or Capltal Warks Projects -

During the year the School and Sroup re¢eivad and applied funding fram the Minisiry of Educabion far he follewing capital works projects:

Schoegl and GROUP

Opening Recelpls BOT Conlsibutiond Closing
2018 Balances from MeE Payments  (Write-off to REM) Balances
H $ H
HCHS Water Supply complelad -
HNBHS Armour Block in progress (2.092)
NBHS Bolies Project in progress 100,63
Totals
nraeitiid b By
Furnds Hald on Eehalf of the hMinistry of Education
Funds Dua &om the Winistry of Education
Dpening Recelpls BOT Contributionf Closing
2047 Balences frem Mak Payments  [Wella-off to REM) Balaneas
$ $
MCHS Class -
NBHS Amcur Biogk 26,316
Fotals {12,535} 133,035 {107 430 12345 26316
22, Rolated Party Transactiony

The Group is & contralisd entity of the Sronvn, and the Crown provides the mador souwce of revenue (o he Gradg. Fhe Group enlers into ansaclions with other
entilies also conlroled by the Crown, such a5 govemmenl dapadments, state-owned enterprises and ather Croven entilies. Transactions with these enditios are not
disclosed @5 1hey otour on {enms and condtians no more of 238 favaurable than thoge that it #5 reasonabie le expect the Growp would have adopled if deading with
that entily at arm's leagth,

Related parly distlosures have nol been made (or transactions with rétated parties that are within a nomal suppler ar cllentireciplent refalionshins g 1ems and
condition ng rmare of lass favourakla than those that it is reasonabis be expedt the Group would have adopied in daaling with the pay at am’'s lenpth in the sams
el . Further, Ir: Himns wilh other g enl ies {for example, Govermmend deparments snd Crown enlities) are not disclosed as relatesd pardy
transgctians when thay @re congislent with the normial operaling arrangements between o gencies and undenaken on the nommal {erms and condiions for
Such fransactians,

There are na olher felated paty Iransactions,

Tha Headmaster Malt Beriram I3 o of the key management persennel of the sehisl. He is provided with & Sthedl house. Rent pakd ta the school hostel @ 2018 15
85,185 (20tT: $4,4R5).

A number of Heads of Departments alo live an sile. They have canl dadusted from the hastel salaries:

52058 S017
K Bouhen 5400 5400
i Barker 5400 5400

23, Reruparation .

Key management personnel compensalion {Schoo! and' Growup}
Key managemeant perscnnel of the Group include all Sthoo! trustees of the Board, Pringipal, Depuly Pringipals and Heads of Degpariments.

0138 2017
Acteal Actual
$ $

Board Membars - Schoo
Remuneration
Fridkime gquivalant members

Leadershiz Team

Remuneralion ; 3,436,466 .

Fuil-time aquivalent members -1 1

Tetal key manzgament parsenaa ramungralion 3,442,815 2,865,851
Total full-lima equlvalent personnal 38,16 3333
The full tme equivalent for Board bers has been delermined hased on attendancs at Board meelings, Commitlee maetings and for olher obligations of the
Board, such as stand downs and suspeasions, ples the estimated lime for Board o prepere for ing:

Napigr Boys High Schog! Annual Report and Consatidated Financlal Statemants
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Preneipal .
The falal walue of remuneatien paid o payabie (o the Pringipal was In the follawing hangs:

2010 2017
Actual Agtaal
Eptaries and Cther Shod-term Emptoyes Aensfits’ SO0 5000
Sakary and Olhey Peymenis H - 170 180120
Bonebits ang Other Emalumenrs 4= 4.8
Termination Benefits " -
Offigr Employees
The number of ciher employess wii remuneralion graster than $103,000 wos in the following Sands:
Ratwneralion Fiva | I 2HT
£000 FTE Numbaer FTE Mumbir
140 -45a g9 oo
120 -+40 240 140
1RI130 149 LX)
13 244 2m
100510 400 200
EL) e
The glnchosura for ‘Other Employees' doas not inclute smuneation: of the Prin clpal.
24 Compensounr and Cihar Bensfig Upen Letvng
The tatgl valua of o dlhor benefils paid of payabia 1o p Wh ceased 10 be Tustees, commaies member, 9r amplayees during the finandal year i
relalion 1 1hat cessadion and numbir of persons to whom el or part of that it was payelie was a5 followes:
e oy
Schaol knd GROUP Actual Arhust
Totel 3600 30
Humber af P2epia 1 L]
2% Comlingendias
There ave no contingent llabllitles (except as noted bekaw) and Ao continnent astata as a1 31 0 2018 {Cantinqeni ius and 955e1t al 31 Docomber 2047: nitl.

Holidays Act Campllance - school payrall
The binistry of Education perferms payrall piotessag and payments on behalf of school besrds of ustees, thraugh payra service provider Educalion Fayrell Limited,

The Adnisley has commanted a tanew F the schoots sectar payroll 1o ansure complianee with the Holidays Act 2003. The Inilial phase of this redeys has ientifind areas af RON-CHTRNCE, howewy the potential

imgac an any spedfic sehaal or ndnvigual and any ialed historical fintilly will nol be knoni il furiner detalled oralysis hos bech completed.
Yo tha exlent thal any abligation cannot reast iy e tied at 31 Dy ber 2018, a conlingent atilty for the schoal may ewist,

26 Commiinants

[a} Gapnal Gemmilments

A5 &t 31 Becembet 2018 the Soard has 1t ag o cophtad works 83 follows:

{2) 337,000 ptug gxt being the wtedtion paysment for the upgrade and refurtbishment of Dorms 4 and 5 of Napiler Sops Hgh Schoot Hested {Soinds Heus o) by

Alerandar Conalroctisa,

{B) 5121587 prejad for the Boller convarslon wif be fully furdad by he Minisiry of Educetion $103,437 has been recerve of wiilth 55,808 haz been spent on the

predect o cate,

(c}In December 2048 Napier Boys High Schoot expeienced a lighAnlrig strike significanity damsging some equipment and alsm syslems. Currently sp sxiimabs hal the cost of replacing iess Hems 1o e in the vidinily
of 570,000 (o $80,000 extluting os!, Our axpeetaiion is that the vast majerly {9058 oF mare} of (kiz east will ba funded rom and a & froe the Mnislry of Educalion. Wa have not provided for any

in relalion 1 this event in thase financat reparts a5 Ye full extent of Costs and recoveries have not yal bean abls 1o be Aslablished.

Capital coramilmaria 5t 31 Dacombeor 2057: 489,308

(bl Operating Commitmanis Schaal and GROUP
A5 8131 December 201R the Bcard has d Inte Ihe f ing
{a] cperaling loais of & lepap P wrvd phok
2B 017
Agiuad Aciual
-4 H
HE lates than Ond ear a3 24 gan
Latat than Qo Year and Mo Laver than Five Years S8,67C &85
G3508 105358

27 Manaping Coplad

The Group's capital is its equity and compazes capital contnbygiens from the Minitry ¢f Education for piaperty, plant ang Geppmant and acclmifated surpluses and deficile  The Groug dovs not ackvely managa
tapital but aftempts ta ensere thot income exceeds spending In wost years, Although seficls can wise &5 planned in particular ygars, they are ofise! by Hanned surpluses In QIovious Years o encuing years.
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28 Financiml sty moents
The cairying amount of financiat assels nd Latilifies In each of the fingnclal instfument cateqories ary a5 fobws:

Leans and recedvables

Schoel Grtrup
2044 2015 2017 08 2018 FLIT
Burdgpat Budgat
Acteral {Unawdited} Actual Aclual {Unpudited) At
¥ % % 5 5 3
Cash and Cash Equlvatants 2050617 3017509 2,504 8498 2,077,220 30857500 2.652.195
Raceivabhps 80%.440 500,080 §15,185 BO3.440 500,200 §15,185
Ehor Term Daposita - . 912,245 - - 912,246
invesiments ~Fixed Interest Securtles - - - 5602 222,242 22,242
Lhares - - - 652,256 G501 53 581
Hgpiar Hiah Stheots Endowment Investment - - - 220 000 IMG.E31 A5.83%
Total Cash and Recaivables 3794 957 3517500 4023305508608 3,761,165 5430 583
Fi Tal lizkinties 1 al amoriiéed cast
Payablas 694,378 600,000 755,652 #94.378 00,000 160508
Bomgwintas - Loans 1627413 1,644 495 1,720,004 1627413 1,644,495 1,720,008
Finante Lagses 52,968 - 63,809 52 fiag - 63,830

Tolat Financial Liabilgles Measured ol Amortised Gast EEIEN] % 40 295 LEER — IRV T TATAS  LESTET

29. Eventy After Eelmce Unte
Theee ware no shgaiiicant evenls afier the Balancs date that Impagk agan conzolidated financial siaements,

0. dmuesmoent In Sutsidizrin

Detals of \he Group's matertal subsidianes at the end of e rp porting pafod ane 55 falioes.
Proponian of gwnership nleres) ang

. Placa of incarparation and  voting power hatd by 1ne Grou Valte of invesiment
Hame of Subsidiary Prinkeaal Atthity onailign 2018 2017 2018 ETIT
Hepitr Boys Figh Schenl Chantable Tast 2 Tnvesimeant in Shaeen ’ Rapier, Hew Zeslond 100 0% 5 1814050 8 1.004 488

aod fixed Interet Sqcounties
Al subsidianas have 21 December balance dales, 3o 1005 owned by the Schaol, and ane ncorporated end domicded in New Zealand,

Tha Betocl comrols 1he Thust {67 1 i | [ &, I subslance, lha fnstituls p el o objectives of the Trusl al estadlishment and benelits fraem the Trosks Eomplamentary actiiling

F Ly

The Trusl Is a registered charily.
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NAPIER BOYS' HIGH SCHOOL
HEADMASTER’'S REPORT

't is my pleasure to report on Napier Boys’ High School's financial performance and position for the

vear ended 31 December 2018.

In 2018 the Napier Boys’ High School Group made a net deficit of $295,122 compared to 2017 when
a net surplus of $127,468 was made. A summary of the financial performance and pasition of Napier
Boys’ High Schoal for 2017 and 2018 is reported below with all dollar values excluding goods and
services tax (if any){if appropriate}. NBHS stands for Napier Boys’ High School and NCAC stands for

Napier Community Activity Centre.

2018 2018 20138 2018 $ NBHS 2018 Group
£ Hostel 5 NBHS $ NCAC Trust No. 2 Total §
Income 1,524,151 11,639,728 95,983 238,136 13,897,998
Expenses 1,853,870 12,242,488 86,179 10,583 14,193,120
Mat Surplus (Deficit) 70,281 {602,760) 9,804 227,553 {295,122}
Net assets 2018 & 3,188,823 4,621,840 156,174 1,514,551 9,480,083
2017 2017 2017 2017 5 NBHS 2017 Group
$ Hostel 5 NBHS $ NCAC Trust No. 2 Total &
Incormse 1,547,912 11,162,923 95,286 175,385 13,381,516
Expenses 1,748,521 11,384,053 88,174 23,300 13,254,048
Net Surplus {Deficit} 199,391 {231,130) 7,112 152,065 127,468
Net assets 2017 $ 3,118,143 5,224,600 144,735 1,286,998 9,774,476

Our Board of Trustees is very grateful and thankful for the fantastic and inspirationai support from
staff, parents and volunteers. Without this support our students would not be able to enjoy the wide
variety of sensational sports, music and cuitural activities and opportunities the school offers which
help our students becorne good young men. We look forward to ongoing success in the future,

Napier Boys High Schoo! Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements

P20



KIWISPORT

Kiwisport is a2 Government funding initiative to support students’ participation in organised sport. In
2018 Napier Boys High School received total Kiwisport funding of $27,528 excluding goods and
services tax.

The school was able to support 30 sports (804 students — 66% of the school) as well as other

recreational opportunities at the school's Camp Simmonds (year 10 Students and Prefects). This
represents a significant investment of resources from a committed and motivated staff and Board of

Trustees. Students have high expeciations of this aspect of school life.

The kiwisport funding has been used to support sports administration in the school, particularly the
Sports Co-ordinator.

Additionally, the funds have been used to purchase:

e Lunchtime sports equipment that is used by students (issued by prefects)
= Sport specific equipment
» Transport to ensure that students were able to get to match venues

Napier Boys High School Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
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Analysis of variance reporting

Analysis of variance reporting: a statement in which schools provide an analysis of any variance between the school’s performance and the relevant ain
objectives, directions, priorities, or targets set out in the school charter.

School name: Napier Boys’ High School

School number: 216

Focus: Students at Napier Boys” High School will develop into confident, innovative young men who will learn, strive and achieve in a traditional
environment, having a strong sense of respect for themselves and others.

2018 Annual Goals and Targets

1. Monitoring student achievement and welfare
Specific Measurable Achievable | Relevant | Timeframe | Who
1.1 School achievement targets are Names, numbers and needs for those students | Yes Yes All year HM/HoD’s/
monitored at risk of not achieving identified, tracked, BT
monitored and mentored
1.2 Refine process for monitoring, Upgrade and simplify PEP’s to online tool Yes Yes Term 1 BT
tracking and mentoring of students | Names, numbers and needs for those students
to ensure those at risk of under- at risk of not achieving identified, tracked,
achieving are supported monitored and mentored
1.3 Review the vertical pastoral staffing | Role of deans Yes Yes Term 3 RS
structure and processes and Role of the tutor
implement changes for 2019 Use of tutorial
Balance of academic and wellbeing
14 Imbed the use of academic data to All teachers have a toolbox of subject specific | Yes Yes All year SM and RS
differentiate teaching and learning data in their markbooks to aid with the
profiling and differentiation of their classes

Ministry of Education | Analysis of variance reporting
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between Scinde House

administration and hostel families.

photographs of various activities. (Website and
App)

Maintaining links with parents and caregivers
via email bulleting and regular newsletters.

Beginning of term Year Level family meals and

end of Term 1 Y19 afternoon tea/presentation.

Hostel reports (Y19 end of Term 1 and all year

levels at end of year).

Provide a profile of House Masters to improve
links of communication in the first newsletter
for the year and also on the website.

Post hostel rules home annually with
newsletter.

1.5 Writing for literacy Embed Write that Essay strategies into all Yes Yes Term 1 BT and CoL
departments incl. assessment task rewrites staff
SSW with junior classes
1.6 Supporting Maori and Pasifika Pasifika Fono re-instituted Yes Yes Ongoing HM
student aspirations Relationship with Pukemokimoki Marae is
formalised
1.7 Implement reporting changes to More frequent reporting Yes Yes Term 1 and 2 | WH/ELA to
ensure accuracy, consisteney and Ensure feedforward/next steps refine
rimeliness of feedback to parents Faster turnaround to parents
1.8 Providing quality communication Providing hostel information online, including | Yes Yes Ongoing BR

2. Professional Learning Culture

Ministry of Education | Talaritanga raraunga
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Specific Measurable Achievable | Relevant | Timeframe | Who
2.1 | Promote and maintain collaborative Establish consistent and meaningful times for | Yes Yes Term 1 SMT
staff culture incl. annual PLD plan professional learning which aligns with goals
2.2 | Update the appraisal process Embed Term 2 to term 2 appraisal cycle Yes Yes Term 2 RS
Add in personal goals
Ensure appraisal and registration reflects new
teaching standards
2.3 | Support staff and volunteers in co- Create handbook(s) for Co-cutricular staff Yes Yes Term 1 and 2 | WT and
curricular activities expectations Sports
Provide PD for EOTC staff leaders eg: Coord.
Experiential learning
3. Curriculum Pathways
Specific Measurable Achievable |Relevant |Timeframe |Who
3.1 | Junior Assessment review Develop consistent assessment tools across Yes Yes Term2—4 ELA/SM
junior subjects which feed into NCEA
standards-based assessment
- Stocktake of assessment types in use
- Reporting of exams vs internal ass.
3.2 | Develop action plan for BYOD ICT Committee makes recommendations on No Yes All year ICT Comm.
implementation 2020 for year 9 strategy and future needs ELA Comm.
3.3 | Gifted and Talented education Establish programme of enrichment Yes Yes Term 2/3 HM/SM
opportunities (a second “curriculum”) for these
students
Promote these offerings widely
Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga Page 3
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3.4 |Taha Maori connections across the

students.

Maintain a fully staffed prep supervision
service.

Study skills programme for exam preparation.
Cclebrating academic achievement and

recognising community service via assemblies
and awards

NBHS Whanau and Pukemokimoki Marae Yes Yes Ongoing HM with
curriculum developed provide support where needed to ensure Maori ELA
context is evident in schemes of wotk
35 |EOTC Review of camps — compulsory vs voluntary; Yes Yes Terms 1 -3 SMT with
funding; staffing. Link to 4.1 WY and
Committee
4. Enable the development of “Good men”
Specific Measurable Achievable | Relevant | Timeframe | Who
4.1 | Review “Ladder to Manhood™ and as | “Ladder to Manhood” updated to reflect Yes Yes Term 2and 3 | SMT
part of 2 “Good man” type award at outcome from year 10
the end of year 10 Link to 3.5
4.2 | Ensure student success is recognised Ensure KAMAR is further developed for the | Yes Yes Term 2 and 3 | MY
permanently recording and tracking of prizes, awards,
honouts etc
4.3 | Providing quality educational and Enhance /foster a culture of academic focus Yes Yes All year BR
social outcomes for all boarders. and excellence amongst Scinde House JO

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga
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Year 9 Orientation programme, involving
Prefects and senior students to foster positive
relationships.

Upholding an affirmative ‘Scinde House
Culture’, maintaining a strong presence in Inter
House Activiries.

Maintaining extra-curricular weekend activities

5. Wellbeing of students and staff

Specific

Measurable

Achievable

Relevant

Timeframe

Who

5.1 | Continue to develop NBHS as a hub of
well-being,

Review 2017 student wellbeing survey results
IEP’s implemented to monitor students at risk
Tailor Health presentations and parental
information evenings to identified priorities, eg:
Cybersafety, bullying etc

Yes

Yes

All year

Guidance/Ti
&
Health/Deans
/Senior
Masters

5.2 | Staff climate survey

Identify NBHS staff strengths and concerns
Identify key staff values

Ensure these are evident in staffroom,
communications, meetings, apptaisal
documents

Act on findings as part of 2019 school goals

Yes

Yes

Term 3/4

HM

5.3 | Staff wellbeing and interpersonal
relationships are an ongoing goal of the
school

Staff Association use budget to benefit of all
staff
SMT include staff welfare goals in all annual

plans

Yes

Yes

Term 1 and
Term 2

HM/RS

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga
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Staff appraisal has a personal development
focus each year

5.4 | Monitor and improve NBHS Safe —
school’s Health and Safety procedures

Implement new tools for reporting all incidents
and near misses

Continue to train/upskill all staff in H and §
Review billeting procedures and
communications re: student safety

Yes

Yes

Term 1

Ongoing
Term 1

WY and HM

5.5 | Providing systems that ensure student
security and safety at all times

Monitoring student’s physical and emotional
health and safety within the hostel.

Appoint night time live-in security person
Continue with use of Boardingware system.
Continue the Student Welfare committee.
Continue with the Hostel Dean pastoral care
programme

Boardingware system to continue

Ensure all boys are equipped with a “pick and
go” bag

Yes

Yes

Ongoing

Term 1
Ongoing

BR

HM
BR

5.6 | Ensuring that all aspects of student
health, care and nutrition are
appropriately catered for

Provision of catering plan and student feedback
(via student council and Deans meetings).
Collation of results after cach survey for
presentation as a summary for Catering Mgr.
Continue to provide training opportunities for
the catering statf on an as needs basis.

Whole year

BR

Catering Mgr
Matron

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga
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6. Operational quality
Specific Measurable Achievable | Relevant |Timeframe |Who
6.1 | Ensuring high quality staff in all Attendance at Hostel’s conference. Yes Yes Ongoing BR and HM
aspects of Hostel life First Aid Courses to be completed by all new Duty
Masters /renewals
Nursing registration course for Matron.
Housemaster survey results and feedforward
(Term 1)
6.2 | Progress Armour Block Masterplan approved Possible Yes Term 1 HM/SM
replacement and Polson upgrade Detailed design work Term 2/3
Final approval November
Construction commences December
6.3 | Remediate urgent Armour Block Student toilets — new standalone facility Yes Yes Term 1 HM
issues Science shelving Property Mgr
6.4 | Progress Te Awa Avenue Angle parking on Te Awa Avenue Yics Yes Term 3 and 4 | Property Mgr
parking/cycle lane with NCC Cycleway
New perimeter fencing /wall /gates on Eastern
boundary
6.5 | Upgrade boiler room to classtoom e Remove boiler and refit with new roof, | Yes Yes Term 1and 2 | Property Mgr
floor, windows and door 10YPP
e Fit out as classroom for life of Armour Consultant
Block rebuild
6.6 | Ensuring high quality facilities in all s Re-locate boarding admin and renovate Yes Yes End of Term | Property Mgr
aspects of Hostel life e Upgrade one wing of Glendining Block 1 BR
: Term 3
e Upgrade Fox Block into tw
pgrade Fox Block annex into two rooms Tetm 2

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga
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Maintain promotion of hostel holiday
lets.

HM
Term 3
Whole year
6.7 | Additional cricket nets Determine location Yes Yes Term 2/3 Property Mgr
Budget Term 4
7. Finance
Specific Measurable Achievable | Relevant |Timeframe |Who
7.1 | Review financial reporting package Compare Greentrees to Xero — follow up Yes Yes Term 3 Finance Mgr
NPBHS’ implementation of Xero to ascertain HM
suitability for NBHS
7.2 mnmﬂﬂmﬂm the continued financial e Maintain strong ﬂHOBOﬁmDDm of the Yes Yes Term 1 mﬁ.\mz
viability of Scinde House Hostel to prospective parents via
annual visits around the region. .
BR/Finance
e All new enrolments to asked to use Mgt
Direct Debit for fees Finance Mgt
¢ Review fees and maintain appropriate Tetm 3 and Hostel
levels of fees and funding sources for Committee
on-going developments
* Maintain a high rate of Boarder Whole year | BR
occupancy. Goal to exceed budgeted
occupancy level (175 boarders) -

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga
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8.1 Charter targets 2018: Students at risk of not achieving qualification/level (percentages unless otherwise stated)
Actual Pakeha Pakeha at Maoti Maori at Pasifika Pasifika at

Qualification pass At risk actual risk actual risk actual risk
Year 9 Read/Write (NZC
L4) 81.1/71.6 20/26 88.2/77.8 14/18 68.4/60.3 23/20 62.5/62.5 33/33
Year 9 Numeracy (NZC 14) 82.8 26 87.2/78 22 71.4/72 28 66.7/67 33/33
Year 10 Read/Write (NZC
L5) 79.5/89.1 15/13 86.1/91.0 12/10 73.5/88 20/18 58.3/66.7 30/15
Year 10 Numeracy (NZC
L5) 752 20 78.4/83 17 72.0/76 24 60.0/55 45
Year 11 Level 1 80.7 10 85.2/94 10 54.4/79 21 90.0/62 25
Year 11 Level 1 65.9/60 40/10! 45.9/46 54/151 0/40 60/141
Endorsements 61.4 45(10%)

94.1/88 12 72.1/82 18 90/81 19
Year 11 Level 1 Literacy 90.2 5

95.6/87 13 77.9/70 30 90/72 28
Year 11 Level 1 Numeracy 91.9 6

84.4/92 8 71.8/81 19 50.0/72 28
Year 12 Level 2 81.9 8
Year 12 Level 2 45.5/45 55/151 33.3/35 65/15! 25/30 70/28!
Endorsements 44.3 60 (10%)

71.7/88 12 46.7/76 24 27.3/60 40
Year 13 Level 3 67.7 15
Year 13 Level 3 51.5/50 50,/201 38.1/40 60/171 0/0 100/20!
Endorsements 40.5 60(10%)

63.8/80 20 35.6/55 45 9.1/40 60
Year 13 University Entrance 57.9 30 /9!
NZ Scholarship? 51 30 n/a n/a n/a
! Students at the boundary: 1 - 10 credits from
qualification

Ministry of Education | Talarilanga raraunga Page 9
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2 Target number only, not percentage

Achievement data 2018

Table 1: All achievement

Boys-only All All Decile

Qualification NB18 | NB 17 | Target | schools boys students | 4-7
Level 1 pass 80.7 82.7 85 76.4 67.9 71.4 74.5
Exc. Endorsement 19.3 20 | n/a 19.6 14.8 21 16.9
Merit Endorsement 421 344 | n/a 35.1 30.9 34.8 338
Total
Endorsements 61.4 54.4 60 54.7 45.7 55.8 50.7
Literacy 90.2 94.2 85 89.6 82 84.8 88.2
Numeracy 91.9 93.5 85 85.8 TXT 82.4 86.5
Level 2 pass 81.9 851 90 81 73.8 77.3 78.6
Exc. Endorsement 14.9 20.1 | n/a 14.8 11.8 16.6 13
Merit Endorsement 29.4 23.8 | n/a 26.1 21.2 259 234
Total
Endorsements 443 439 44 40.9 33 42.5 42.5

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga Page 10
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UE Literacy (y12) 54.4 58.6 48.8 38.5 482 455
Level 3 pass 67.7 65.7 85 69.3 60.1 65.4 64.6
Exc. Endotsement 252 174 | n/a 13.6 11.8 1524 13.4
Merit Endorsement 24.3 303 [ n/a 26.2 23.6 27.5 25.3
Total
Endorsements 49.5 47.7 45 39.8 354 42.6 38.7
UE Literacy (y13) 799 765 74.6 63.6 70.9 721
UE 57.9 58.4 70 52.6 41.1 47.7 451
Decile 6 6 6 | All All All All
Table 2: Maori Achievement
Maori achievement
Boys-only All
Qualification NB18 | NB17 | Target | schools All boys students | Decile 4-7
Level 1 pass 544  688] 79 67 50.9 55.1 58.8
Exc. Endorsement 5.4 14.5 n/a| 9.6 6.2 10.1 9
Merit Endorsement 40.5 309 n/a | 31.3 23.1 282 279

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga
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Total Endorsements 46 409 203 38.3 36.9
Literacy 82 84.8 72.6 77.8 80.3
Numeracy 70 80.4 09.1 73.6 76.9
Level 2 pass 81 77.4 63.2 66.4 70.1
Exc. Endorsement n/a| 7.3 5.1 7.4 6.3
Merit Endorsement n/a | 18.2 12.9 18.3 16.3
Total Endorsements 35 255 18 257 22.6
UE Literacy (y12) 379 26 34.8 329
Level 3 pass 76 62.9 473 50.8 52.2
Exc. Endorsement n/a | 7.3 6.3 8.4 7.6
Merit Endorsement 14.3 56.3 n/a | 19.1 155 19.5 19.8
Total Endorsements 38.1 62.6 40 26.4 21.8 279 274
UE Literacy (y13) G0 533 66.9 49.9 58.2 48.2
UE 35.6 — Nm.u— 55 36.6 21.7 26.7 27.9
Decile 6 6 6 All | Al All 4t07

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga Page 12
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Boys-only All boys in boys-only schools
Decile 4 -7 All decile 4 - 7 schools

All boys All boys in all schools

All students All students in all schools

Overall Achievement commentary (Table 1)

As tabled in the February report, we were very pleased with the results against targets the school’s targets for endorsements. When considered
against national group data, endorsement rates and UE compate favourably. Where we are behind virtually all reference schools and national
group data are the qualification pass rates at L1, 2 and 3.

The change to enrolment-based figures which all schools must use lessens the impact of variability when comparing school to school. However,
the challenge continues as in past years: explaining our results to our parents and the public as league tables do not compare apples with apples.
That is, a calculus course at year 13 here is not necessarily the same as a calculus course at another Hawke’s Bay school. When you consider the
curriculum policy of the school (for review this meeting) the differentiated courses we offer do meet the wide range of student needs, but always
with the proviso that these have clear pathways both within school and into tertiary study or careers.

These are disappointing and represent a step back from 2017 particularly as our targets were based on known students at risk who despite more
targeted interventions, did not achieve qualifications. While, as mentioned in February, the endorsements and UE show our better Maori
academics do well in comparison to national group data, Maori qualification achievement overall (eg: NCEA Level 1 pass — not endorsed) is
poor in comparison to all other national group data as well as lagging well behind NZ European results.

This remains a challenge for the school. Our approach in our goals continues to be a two-pronged approach: 1. Culturally-responsive pedagogy

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga Page 13
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as part of professional learning and, 2. A drive to identify barriers to achievement for Maori students such as attendance and address these.

Our best return ever, as we had expected around 30. Geography led the way with 18 scholarships but what was pleasing were the range of
subjects in which scholarships were achieved as well as the healthy number at Year 12 which augurs well for 2019,

Baseline data:

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga Page 14
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1. Roll at 1 March 2019 vs 1 March 2018
01/03/2019 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13 Total

Ethnicity NZ |[Int |NZ |Int NZ Int |NZ |[Int | NZ Int [ NZ % | Int
Asian 7 3 7 3 2 4 - 8 4 5 24 2| 23
European 161 154 158 6 153 5 1061 4| 732 64| 15
Maori 88 67 80 60 49 344 | 30
MELAA* 3 1 2 0 1 8| 0.7
Pasifika 3 10 12 6 5 36 3
Other 0 1 1 0 1 3| 03
Totals 262 | 3 240 | 3 256 | 10 223 | 13 166 | 9 1147 | 100 | 38
Totals 2018 255 11 262 252 H 239 1 167 9| 1177 | B2
“Middle Eastern, Latin Ametica, Africa

2. Retention Rates 2015— 2018 by Year
Total Students
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018

Roll Retention Roll Retention Roll Retention Roll Retention
9 278 268 275 255

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga Page 15
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10 275 273 258 262
11 256 92.1 261 97.4 263 95.6 252
12 254 92.4 231 84.6 229 88.8 239
13 173 67.6 180 69.0 172, 65.4 167

nta

Opverall retention is consistent with the past three years.

Pakeha
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018
Roll Retention Roll Retention Roll Retention Roll Retention
9 278 268 184 172
10 275 273 169 178
11 256 92.1 261 97.4 167 90.8 170
12 254 92.4 231 84.6 143 84.6 151
13 173 67.6 180 69.0 107 64.1 103 60.6

Pakeha retention at year 11 mirrors school retention rise at year 11; year
12 and 13 at four-year low.

Maori
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018
Roll Retention Roll Retention Roll Retention Roll Retention
9 278 268 73 61
10 275 273 76 65

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga Page 16



11 256 92.1 261 97.4 82 1123 71
12 254 92.4 231 54.6 59 77.6 71
13 173 67.6 180 69.0 46 56.1 44

10 year average.

final two years from year 11 than other ethnicities, however,

than for other ethnic groups and this is also reflected in UE data.

Maori retention bucks the whole school population trend indicating that more Maori students enrol for their

, Maori retention at year 13 is still lower than than the

Pasifika
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018
Roll Retention Roll Retention Roll Retention Roll Retention
9 12 9
10 i
11 7 58.3
12 3 114.3
13 6 85.7

Pasifika student retention is difficult to gauge accurately given the small sample size.

Variations of this order have been due to factors such as Student disengagement
and family relocations.

Asian
Year 2015 2016 2017 2018
Retention Retention Roll Retention Roll Retention
9 0 7
Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga Page 17
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Asian student retention is difficult to gauge accurately given the small sample size.

The key point on attendance in 2018 was again the higher retention of Year 12 and 13 students. One new vocational course at year
12/13 was added to the curticulum to cater for this. STP (Trades Academy) numbers started high, however, as students left school
during the year for jobs and further training, these numbers dropped.

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga Page 18



Key Actions (what did we do?)

Outcomes {what happened?)

Reasons for the variance (why did
it happen?)

Evaluation (where to next?)

1. Reviewed vertical pastoral staffing & Staff, students and parents *» The change to vertical Theee way goal setting
structure and processes (two yeats were strongly in favour of pastoral systems and the confetences introduced in
since implementation) retaining vertical tutorial implementation of the 2+ term 1, 2019 {(SMART
* Role of House Deans classes mtorial each week was a big template)
® Role of the Tutor e Staff split 50:50 on vertical vs change in 2017 Voluntary Peer Support
¢ Use and frequency of tutorial hotizontal deaning system; *  Senior students were more training being offered in

times students and parents more in likely to favour the previous November 2019 for afl year
¢ Dalance of academic vs favour of vertical deaning system but evidence of 12’s
wellbeing monitoring system seniors working as peetr Senior Manager appointed to

¢ Decans themselves and support with juniors ovetsee each year level and
management preferred {Tuakana/Taina); seniors coordinate level pastoral
vertical system with 1 using this evidence for their needs
exception CV’s and scholarship

o Evidence that system needed applications endorsed by theit
1o evolve as issues with futors
overall pastoral care at year 9 »  Expectations of all
and 10 with vertical deans stakcholders higher in tetms

*  Preference for 2 weekly of mtozials and pastoral care
tuter time to be used for year
level or House assemblies
from tme to time

s Recognition that academic
menitoring and mentoring
needs to include wellbeing
goals

2. Implemented Staff Climate survey s  Communijcation: staff

via NZCER

*  Survey completed July 2018

*  Issued to sraff

+  Full staff meeding for 90
minutes to focus on arcas of
chaflenge: Communication,
Decision Making and Seaff
Morale

believed that use of two
electronic forms of comms as
well as paper led to confusion
and caused friction between
staff and management

¢ Decision-making: Eg: changes
te the pastoral systems of the

Focus group, led by
counsellot, to continue in
2019 and take responsibility
for Staff Welfare fund.
Staff wellbeing continues as
school focus

Ministry of Education | Analysis of variance reporting
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Findings collated and focus
group of staff volunteered ta
work on these three areas
Focus group led by counsellor
and reported back to staff
term 4 on progress

Focus group to continue in
2019 and take responsibility
for Staff Welfare fund.

school; change in leadership
style; Board of Trustees’
Disciplinary decisions have
caused some staff to feel
unsupported or not listened
to

e  Staff Morale: workplace
busyness and expectations
(internal and external)
continue to increase

Communication system now
email, not KAMAR as well;
new staff noticeboard
School rules reviewed by
board, especially uniform
policy; ban on cellphones in
class implemented

School decision-making
processes clarified

3. Writing for literacy

Applied for Community of
Learning PLD and further
funding

Used our preferred provider
(Write that Essay) to work
with small groups in
Departments to progress the
wortk from 2016 and 2017
All staff were also part of a
two hour session on our in-
service day

Writing module introduced at
year 9

* Lvidence of greater uptake
from a range of sources:

Lig: Maths inquiry re; paragraph writing for
statistics showed significant improvement in
test results

Lig: NZQA Scholarship results best ever in
2018; students taught range of strategics
from this program

Continue to embed the whole
school PLD from Write that
Essay with this goal
continuing in 2019 with Social
Sciences targeted in term 2,
English term 3 and Science
term 4

In-service time to be targeted
at three groups: a. New to
NBHS teachers, b. Those
who are experiencing
challenges and, c. Those who
are working well

Group inquiries to be
encouraged again for the
2019/2020 appraisal cycle to
assist in embedding this PLD

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga
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4. Implemented reporting changes
to ensure accuracy, consistency
and timeliness of feedback to
parents/ caregivers

Reviewed reporting with
stakcholders including
parents

Adopted a system of
continual feedback (8
times per year) based on
learning charactetistics
accompanied by up to
date assessment data
No written comments,
except one summative
comment at the end of
the year by the tutor

All accessible via Parent
and Student portal on
KAMAR

One progress report in
term 1, full written
reports in term 2 and end
of year were not proving
responsive when learning
issues were clearly evident
Time delays in writing,
proofing and publishing
written reports negated
usefulness of comments
in many cases. Variability
has also been an issue in
terms of quality of
comment as well

Review end of 2019 along
with Goal Setting
conference and Parent
teacher interviews as a
part of whole school

reporting.

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga
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Planning for next year: 2019 Annual Goals and Targets

6. Monitoring student achievement and welfare

student aspirations

2018)

Relationship with Pukemokimoki Marae is
formalised; embedded as part of “Ladder to
Manhood”

Specific Measurable Achievable | Relevant | Timeframe | Who
1.1 School achievement targets are Names, numbers and needs identified, tracked | Yes Yes Ongoing SMT
monitored and monitored (Refer 1.2)
12 Continue process for monitoting, - Review platform (IK<amar/Office 365) | Yes Yes Whole year TR
tracking and mentoring of students - Align with CoL transition team’s At
to ensure those at risk of under- risk spreadsheet
achicving are supported - Eliminate barriers such as wifi access
1.3 Imbed all approved Role of deans Yes Yes Term 1 RS
recommendations from the 2018 Role of the tutor
Vertical pastoral system review Use of tutorial
Balance of academic and wellbeing
1.4 Imbed the use of academic data to (Not achieved 2018) Yes Yes Ongoing SM and ELA
differentiate teaching and learning HoD’s to identify key data
School to set up summary matkbooks for all
teaches and departments with this key data
PLD provided re: using this
Use of the data a focus of all lesson
observations
1.5 Writing for literacy Write that Essay part of PLD Yes Yes Whole year RS
Sustained Silent Writing continued with Whole year SW
recommended changes
Literacy module reviewed Done BU
1.6 Supporting Maori and Pasifika Pasifika Fono re-instituted (Not achieved Yes Yes Term 2 HM

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga
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1.7 Implement goal serting 3-way conferences [ Term One — whole day school shutdown Yes Yes Term 1 RS/TR
with year 9 - 13 PLD for staff
1.8 Review reporting changes and goal Yes Yes Term 3 WH
setting 3-way conferences
1.9 Providing quality communication between | Providing hostel information online, including Yes Yes All year JO
Scinde House administration, the day photographs of various activities. (Website and App)
school and hostel families
Maintaining links with parents and caregivers up to
date with boarding activities through the promotion
and use of social media, email and newsletrers.
Beginning of term Year Level family meals and end of
Term 1 Y19 afrernoon rea/presentation.
Hostel reports (Y19 end of Term 1 and all year levels
at end of year),
Provide a profile of House Masters to improve links
of communication in the first newslerter for the year
and also on the website.
Post hostel rules home annually with newsletter,
7. Professional Learning Culture
Specific Measurable Achievable | Relevant | Timeframe | Who
2.1 | Professional Learning plan is flexible Staff can choose from a range of PLD either Yes Yes Term 1 RS
within a school goal or from across a range of
goals
2.2 | Monitor and review inquiry process All staff completed an approved inquiry as per | Yes Yes Term 2 RS
changes appraisal requirements
Support provided as necessary
2.3 | Culturally responsive pedagogy Differentiated PLD for staff, eg: Yes Yes Whole year HM
Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga Page 23
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- Te Reo course through EIT (formal PK
qualification; free to school)
- Culturally response pedagogical
training to built on prior learning such
as Te Kotahitanga (funding in place)
- Basic tikanga and te reo courses
(provided in-house)
2.4 | Support staff and volunteers in co- Create handbook(s) for Co-cutricular staff Yes Yes wWT
curricular activities expectations
Strategic plan for sport Draft plan submitted to Management Yes Yes Term 3 WT
8. Curticulum Pathways
Specific Measurable Achievable | Relevant |Timeframe | Who
3.1 | Monitor junior assessment changes - Reporting process Yes Yes Whole year SM and
- ELA and Department meetings ELA
- Learning Support
3.2 | Digital Technology curticulum New curriculum implemented, and timetable Yes Yes Term 3 SY and ELA
changes effected for 2020
3.3 | Gifted and Talented educaton Establish programme of enrichment Yes Yes Term 2 HM
opportunities (a second “curriculum”) for these
students
Promote these offerings widely
34 | Digital fluency Professional learning time (150 houts) Yes Yes Whole year SY
approved for 2019
Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga Page 24
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9. Enable the development of “Good men”

Specific Measurable Achievable | Relevant | Timeframe | Who
4.1 | Implement “Ladder to Manhood” “Ladder to Manhood™ program successfully Yes Yes Term 1 RS
changes (year 9) and “Good man” run term 1 with year 9
award (year 10) “Good man” awards presented at Junior
prizegiving
4.2 | Ensure student success is recognised Ensure KAMAR is further developed for the | Yes Yes Term 1 MY
permanently recording and tracking of prizes, awards,
honours etc
R4. | Providing quality educational and social Enhance /foster a culrure of academic focus and Yes Yes Whole year QO
3 outcomes for all boarders. excellence amongst Scinde House students.

Maintain a fully staffed prep supervision service.
Srudy skills programme for exam preparation.

Celebrating academic achievement and recognising
communiry service via assemblies and awards

Year 9 Orientation programme, involving Prefects and
senior students to foster positive relaionships.

Upholding an affirmative ‘Scinde House Culture’,
maintaining a strong presence in Inter House

Activities.

Maintaining extra-curricular weekend activities

10. Wellbeing of students and staff

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga Page 25
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care and nutrition are appropriately catered
tor

student council and Deans meetings).
Collation of resulrs after cach survey for presentation
as a summary for Catering Mgr,

Specific Measurable Achievable |Relevant |Timeframe |Who
5.1 | Continue to develop NBHS as a hub of | Focus on mental health and resilience with Yes Yes Whole year SR
well-being specialist support
- Student input into program
- Build into level assemblies Deans
5.2 | Staff climate Reference group continues to act on findings of | Yes Yes Term 2 SR and HM
2018 Staff survey and implement agreed
changes
53 | Staff wellbeing and interpersonal Staff committee to administer wellbeing budget | Yes Yes Whole year SR
relationships are an ongoing goal of the
school
5.4 | Monitor and improve NBHS Safe — school’s | Continue to train/upskill all staff in H and 8 Yes Yes Ongoing WY
Health and Safery procedures
5.5 | Providing systems that casure student Monitoring student’s physical and emotonal health and | Yes Yes Ongoing JO
security and safery at all fimes safety within the hostel.
Appoint night time live-in secutity person
Continue with use of Boardingware system.
Continue the Student Welfare committee.
Continue with the Hostel Dean pastoral care
programme
Boardingwate system to continue
Ensure all boys are equipped with a “pick and
mOMU vnm
5.6 Ensuring that all aspects of student health, Provision of catering plan and student feedback (via Yes Yes OD.WGBN JO

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga
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Continue to provide training opportunities for the
catering staff on an as needs basis.

8. Operational quality

Specific Measurable Achievable | Relevant |Timeframe | Who
6.1 | Ensuring high qualiry staff inall aspects | Attendance at Hostel's conference. Yes Yes Term 2 JO
of Hostel life First Aid Courses to be completed by all new Duty Terrn 1 JO
Masters/renewals
Housemaster survey term 4 Tetm 4 HM
6.2 | Progress Armour Block Masterplan approved Yes Yes Ongoing HM
replacement and Polson upgrade Detailed design work underway PO
Construction commences
6.3 | Administration upgrade School Possibly Yes Term 1 /2 PO
6.4 | Progress long-term property plan Farm Yes Yes Ongoing BOT
Parking and road safety Te Awa Avenue and
Chambers Street
6.5 | Upgrade boilet room to classroom e Remove boiler and refit with new roof, Yes Yes Term 1 PO
- Ongoing from 2018 floor, windows and door
e Fit out as classroom for life of Armour
Block rebuild
6.6 [ Ensuring high qualiry facilitics in all ®  Upgrade one wing of Glendining Block | Yes Yes Term 3 HM/PO
aspects of Hostel life (annual until 2022)

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga
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6.7 | Additional cricket net and artificial | Determine location Yes Yes Term 3 HM /PO
pitch Budget
9. Finance
Specific Measurable Achievable | Relevant | Timeframe | Who
7.1 | Review financial reporting package Compare Greentrees to Xero — follow up Yes Yes Term 2 HM
- Deferred from 2018 NPBHS’ implementation of Xero to ascertain
suitability for NBHS
7.2 | Ensuring the continued financial e Maintain strong promotions of the Yes Yes Term 1 JO/HM
viability of Scinde House Hostel to prospective parents via
annual visits around the region. i
e All new enrolments to asked to use Tema Fiopee
Direct Debit for fees
e Review fees and maintain appropriate Term 3 Finance/BOT
levels of fees and funding sources for
on-going developments
e Maintain a high rate of Boarder Ongoing Jo
occupancy. Goal to exceed budgeted
occupancy level (175 boardets) .
e Maintain promotion of hostel holiday Ongoing Je
lets.

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga
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8.1 Charter targets 2019: Students at risk of not achieving qualification/level

Maori at Pasifika | Pasifika at
Actual pass | At risk Pakeha actual | Pakeha at risk | Maori actual | risk actual risk

Qualification

Year 9 Read/Write (NZC 1.4) 20/27% 19/26% 24/29% 33/33%
Year 9 Numeracy (NZC 1L4) 24% 21% 26% 33%
Year 10 Read/Write (NZC L5) 20/29% 15/23% 32/40% 38/38%
Year 10 Numeracy (NZC L5) 28% 14% 29% 33%
Year 11 Level 1 20% 15% 25% 40%
Year 11 Level 1 Endorsements 40/151% 40/101%, 54/151% 60/141%
Year 11 Level 1 Literacy 14% 12% 18% 19%
Year 11 Level 1 Numeracy 12% 13% 30% 28%
Year 12 Level 2 20% 16% 40% 28%
Year 12 Level 2 Endorsements 60/10'% 55/15"% 70/151% 100/281%
Year 13 Level 3 35% 30% 35% 60%
Year 13 Level 3 Endorsements 60/ 101% 58/201% 70/15% 75/251%
Year 13 University Entrance 40 /101% 35% 60% 60%
NZ Scholarship? 302 n/a n/a n/a

' Students at the boundary: 1 - 10 credits from qualification

2 Target number only, not percentage

Ministry of Education | Tataritanga raraunga
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE READERS OF NAPIER BOYS HIGH SCHOOL’S
GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Napier Boys High School and its controlled entities (collectively
referred to as ‘the Group’). The Auditor-General has appointed me, Maxwell John Dixon, using the staff
and resources of PricewaterhouseCoopers, to carry out the audit of the financial statements of the Group

on his behalf.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Group on pages 2 to 19, that comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense,
statement of changes in net assets/equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date,
and the notes to the financial statements that include accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion the financial statements of the Group:
D present fairly, in all material respects:
- its financial position as at 31 December 2018; and
- its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and
° comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance with
Public Benefit Entity Standards Reduced Disclosure Regime issued in New Zealand (PBE
Standards RDR).

Our audit was completed on 31 May 2019. This is the date at which our opinion is expressed.

The basis for our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board
of Trustees and our responsibilities relating to the financial statements, we comment on other
information, and we explain our independence.

Basis for our opinion

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Professional and Ethical Standards and the International Standards on Auditing (New
Zealand) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Responsibilities of the auditor section of our report.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Level 3, 6 Albion St, PO Box 645, Napier 4140, New Zealand
T: +64 6 835 6144, pwe.co.nz
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Responsibilities of the Board of Trustees for the financial statements

The Board of Trustees is responsible on behalf of the Group for preparing financial statements that are
fairly presented and that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand. The
Board of Trustees is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable it to
prepare financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Trustees is responsible on behalf of the Group for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Board of Trustees is also responsible
for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting, unless there is an intention to close or merge the Group, or there is no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Trustees’ responsibilities arise from the Education Act 1980.

Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a whole,
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit carried out in
accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts or disclosures, and can arise
from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of readers taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

For the budget information reported in the financial statements, our procedures were limited to
checking that the information agreed to the Group’s approved budget.

We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. Also:

- We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

- We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Trustees.

PwC 2
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- We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the
Board of Trustees and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- We obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of the entities
or business activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
‘We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

- We assess the risk of material misstatement arising from the Novopay payroll system, which may
still contain errors. As a result, we carried out procedures to minimise the risk of material errors
arising from the system that, in our judgement, would likely influence readers’ overall
understanding of the financial statements.

We communicate with the Board of Trustees regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Our responsibilities arises from the Public Audit Act 2001.

Other information

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included within the Analysis of Variance, the Kiwisport Statement, the Principals Report,
and the Board of Trustees List which form part of the Annual Report, but does not include the
financial statements, and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of audit opinion or assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information. In doing so, we consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on our work, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the independence requirements of the Auditor-

General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the independence requirements of Professional and
Ethical Standard 1 (Revised): Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.

Other than the audit, we have no relationship with or interests in the Group.

Maxwell John Dixon
PricewaterhouseCoopers

On behalf of the Auditor-General
Napier, New Zealand
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